
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MEETING AGENDA 
TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6TH, – 7:30 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. FUTURE MEETINGS  

Town Board Meeting: Monday, January 9th, at 7:30 pm (Town Office & Zoom) 
Planning Commission Meeting: Monday, January 30th, at 7:30 pm (Town Office & 
Zoom) 
MEETING ITEMS  

A. APPROVE MINUTES: November 7, 2022 and November 21, 2022 
B. POLICE REPORT  
C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT  
E. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
F. MAYOR’S COMMENTS  
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
H. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

1) Free Holiday metered parking for consideration. 
2) Discussion related to using Farmers Market land for larger community garden 

plot. 
3) For consideration, Proclamation honoring Emmitsburg High School 

Volunteer. 
I. CONSENT AGENDA  

1) Reappoint Dianne Walbrecker to Board of Appeals with a term of December 
15, 2022- December 15, 2022. 

2) Appoint Jack Pollitt to the Parks and Recreation Committee with a term of 
being December 6, 2022- December 2, 2024. 

3) Appoint Valerie Turnquist an alternate to the Planning Commission with a 
term of December 6, 2022 – December 6, 2027. 

4) Reappoint Mark Walker to the Citizen’s Advisory Committee with a term of 
November 7, 2022 – November 7, 2024. 

J. TREASURER’S REPORT 
K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT  
L. AGENDA ITEMS (DETAILS ATTACHED) 

1) Hold public hearing then consideration of Ordinance 2022-12 which would 
increase water and sewer rates over a three-year period. 

Town of Emmitsburg 
Mayor Donald N. Briggs 

Board of Commissioners,  
Timothy O’Donnell, President  
Joseph Ritz III, Vice President 
Clifford Sweeney, Treasurer  
Frank Davis 
Amy Boehman-Pollitt 
 
Town Manager 
Cathy Willets 
Town Clerk 
Sabrina King 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

2) For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2022-13 which would change Board 
of Commissioners meeting to 7:00pm. 

3) For consideration, approval of the three-year sewer relining bid. 
4) For discussion and consideration, an offer from Richard Lindsay to purchase 

three acres from the Town of Emmitsburg located near the WWTP. 
5) For consideration, approval of revertible forest conservation easement with 

Daughters of Charity. 
  a. The Daughters of Charity is providing the Town a 9.2013-acre  
  revertible forest conservation easement to the Town in order to  
  plant trees for the 2023-2028 MS-4 permitting term. Parcel located 
  on East side of US 15. 

6) For consideration, amending the hours of the Farmers Market. 
7) For consideration, approval of the Amendment to Loan and Financing 

agreement for the extension of credit made to the Vigilant Hose Company of 
Emmitsburg as the successor by merger to the Emmitsburg Volunteer 
Ambulance Co. 

M. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: JANUARY 9th, 2022 
4. SIGN APPROVED TEXT AMENDMENTS AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
5. ADJOURN 

 
 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81535340024 
 
Meeting ID: 815 3534 0024 
Passcode: 21727 
One tap mobile 
+13092053325,,81535340024#,,,,*21727# US 
+13126266799,,81535340024#,,,,*21727# US (Chicago) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
         
Meeting ID: 815 3534 0024 
Passcode: 21727 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

A. APPROVE MINUTES 
MINUTES 

TOWN MEETING 
NOVEMBER 7, 2022 

TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 
 
Present:  Elected Officials - Mayor Donald Briggs; Commissioners: Timothy O’Donnell, 
President; Joseph Ritz III, Vice President; Clifford Sweeney, Treasurer, Frank Davis; and Amy 
Boehman-Pollitt. Staff Present - Cathy Willets, Town Manager; Sabrina King, Town Clerk; Cole 
Tabler, Accounting Supervisor; Reese Fryer, Recorder. Others Present – Deputy Jason Ahalt; 
Clark Adams, Town Attorney Associate; Chris Jakubiak, Planning Consultant. 
 
I. Call to Order  
A quorum being present, Commissioner Timothy O’Donnell, President of the Board of 
Commissioners, called the November 21st, 2022 town meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Upcoming meetings were announced. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Commissioner Ritz motioned to table the October 3, 2022 town meeting minutes to November 
21, 2022; second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was accepted.  

 
Police Report: 
Deputy Ahalt presented the police report from October 2022 (exhibit attached).  
 
Town Managers Report: 
Ms. Willets, Town Manager, presented the Manager’s Report from September 2022 (exhibit in 
agenda packet). Ms. Willets highlighted key points in her report and noted that as of 11/07/2022 
the lake is 2.0’ feet below spillway therefore Mayor implemented Phase 1 voluntary water 
restrictions. 
 
Grant Administrative Report: 
Ms. Willets, Town Manager, presented Ms. Shaw’s Grants Administrative Report.  
 
Town Planners Report:  
Ms. Willets, Town Manager, presented the Planner’s Report from September 2022 (exhibit in 
agenda packet).  
 
Commissioner Comments:  
• Commissioner Davis: He expressed his excitement in hopes of Rutter’s will be opened 

before Thanksgiving. 
• Commissioner Sweeney: Thanked everyone for helping with Halloween. 
• Commissioner Ritz III: Thanked all organizations that helped for Halloween, and 

reminding everyone to vote for upcoming Elections. 
• Commissioner O’Donnell: He wanted to give a reminder about the Turkey Trot on 

Thanksgiving Day.  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

• Commissioner Amy Boehman-Pollitt: Thanked all organizations that donated to the Breast 
Cancer Foundation.  

 
Mayor’s Comments:  
Mayor Briggs attended numerous meetings in October 2022 (meetings listed in agenda packet). 
Mayor Briggs mentioned the Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony on December 6th at 6:15pm 
with activities prior.  
 
Commissioner O’Donnell announced Agenda Item #2 would be moved up before Agenda Item 
#1 and asked those who came to speak on the Shooting Range to wait to speak when the Agenda 
Item was announced. Those who wanted to speak about other concerns can during the public 
comment. 
 
Public Comments: 
Eric Sloane, Emmitsburg MD, - Mr. Sloane wanted to discuss the option of Street Sweeping and 
if the Town can purchase one. Concerned about College student’s behavior around the Jubilee 
building. Mike Hillman, Emmitsburg MD- Mr. Hillman gave the Town maps of Emmitsburg that 
he had in his possession.  
 
Administrative Business: 

(A). First Item: Proclamation for Municipal Government Works Month November 2022 for 
consideration was read by Commissioner O’Donnell. Motion: Commissioner Davis 
motioned to accept the Proclamation; second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas –5; Nays 
–0. The motion was adopted. 

     
Consent Agenda: 
 
Motion: The Board of Commissioners unanimously accepted the resignation of Dan Garnitz 
from the Board of Appeals; Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. Motion: The Board of 
Commissioners unanimously accepted to appoint Dan Garnitz as a regular member of the 
Planning Commission with a term of November 7, 2022 – January 18, 2027 for consideration; 
Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. Motion: The Board of Commissioners 
unanimously accepted the to appoint Jack Pollitt as an alternative member of the Board of 
Appeals term expires October 1, 2025 for consideration; Yeas – 4; Nays – 0. Commissioner 
Boehman-Pollitt Abstain. The motion was adopted. 
 
Treasurer’s Report: 
Commissioner Sweeney presented the Treasurer’s Report for October 2022 (exhibit in agenda 
packet).  
 
Planning Commission Report: 
Commissioner Ritz III presented the report. The Commission last met on October 25, 2022 and 
reviewed items that were Christ’s Community Church, Brookfield Parcel’s “C”, “D”, “E”, 
Rutter’s, Village Liquors, Emmitsburg East Industrial Park II, and Irishtown Road (Brookfield 
Lots (1-19). Reviewed and prepared staff memo for zoning text amendment application – 
shooting ranges. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
II. Agenda Items 
Agenda #1 – For discussion, increase to water/sewer rates: The agenda item is being pursued 
because water rates have not been increased for all users for over 14 years and sewer rates have 
not increased in eight years and there are not enough funds to cover operation and maintenance 
expenses on both systems. Ms. Willets introduced Mr. Maker with New Gen Strategies who 
completed the water/sewer rate and connection fee study attended through via Zoom. Mr. Maker 
gave a brief presentation (exhibit in agenda packet) of the different water/sewer rate increases. 
The Board gave direction to staff to pursue the three-year increase as opposed to increases all at 
once. The item will be brought back for a public hearing at the December 6, 2022 town meeting. 
 
Cole Tabler left the stand at 9:36 pm, as Mr. Clark; Town Attorney, took the stand. 
 
Agenda #2 – Hold a public hearing then consideration, of Ordinance of 2022-10 which would 
allow private shooting ranges in the industrial zone. Ms. Willets went through a detailed 
presentation (exhibit in packet) of the history and timeline of the proposed zoning text 
amendment as well as information from the NRA and Department of Energy. Mr. Delauter told 
the Board that he would limit only pistols for noise control and offered to have the Frederick 
County Sheriff’s Office evaluate the safety. The Board asked for the public comment: 
 
Mary Claire Best, Emmitsburg MD-  Ms. Best is concerned of the noise it brings to the shopping 
center, and the school, Mother Seton. Kids are outside for recess and will hear gun shots as this 
could be traumatic for them. The safety concerns being the proposed shooting range is not far 
from residential/businesses and accidents can happen. Gene Ling, Emmitsburg MD-  Mr. Ling is 
concerned of the traffic on driving on US 15 will be distracted of the sound of gun fire and cause 
accidents. Tim Bieber, Rutter’s- Mr. Bieber expressed that the shooting range is not compatible 
with his establishment and the site is too close to his property line. The safety of the customers is 
a main concern being able to hear gun fire would be bad for business. Pauline Jascur, 
Emmitsburg MD- Ms. Jascur gave an example of how other shooting ranges had holes in the 
wall. Worried for the safety of the residents. Richard Lindsey, Emmitsburg MD- Mr. Lindsey 
lives on Creamery Road and has horses on the property and is concerned his horses will be 
spooked from the constant gunfire. Expressed that some customers could be Veterans suffering 
from PTSD. Ed Egan, - Spoke of how the proposed shooting range could have an effect on other 
rural developments. For a shooting range you are only able to shoot North or South, which would 
be in the direction of the Mother Seton School and Mr. Lindsey’s residential. Dr. Portier, 
Emmitsburg MD-  Dr. Portier gave her support to the rest of the people that spoke before her. 
Also added the emotional damage that brings to the people and how she sees this daily in her 
practice. 
 
The applicant and his attorney addressed the concerns of the residents. They stated the Frederick 
County Sheriff’s Office would ensure that safety measures were in place.  
 
Commissioner O’Donnell closed the public hearing at 9:02 pm. 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 6 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

Motion: Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt motioned to deny the Ordinance of 2022-10 as written; 
second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas – 4; Nays – 0; Abstained – 1 (Davis) The motion was 
approved. 
 
Agenda #3 – For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2022-11 which would allow the use of 
firearms at private shooting ranges in Town of Emmitsburg: 
 
Mr. Clark; Town attorney stepped down at 9:16 pm. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt motioned to deny the Ordinance 2022-11; second by 
Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas – 0; Nays – 4; Abstained – 1 (Davis). The motion was approved. 
 
Agenda #4 – For consideration, Policy P 22-01 hunting and recreational usage at Rainbow Lake 
and Watershed. The agenda item is being perused to extend small game with deer and turkey 
hunting season with deer hunting season. Ms. Willets read the updated Policy P 22-01, there 
were no questions. Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept Policy P 22-01; second 
by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Agenda #5– For consideration, approval of Resolution 2022-05R which adopts the Frederick 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan. The Town of Emmitsburg acknowledges the requirements of 
Section 322 of DMA 2000 to have an approved Hazard Mitigation Plan. Dennis Dudley with 
Frederick County reviewed the County’s Hazard Mitigation Plan and the need for the Town to 
ensure funding if needed. Ms. Willets read the Resolution, there were no questions. Motion: 
Commissioner Davis motioned to accept Resolution 2022-05R; second by Commissioner 
Boehman-Pollitt. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Agenda #6– Rutters forest conservation easement removal request discussion and consideration. 
If the Board agrees to revoke the easement, in whole or in part, the Forest Conservation Plan 
goes back to the planning commission for its decision regarding Forest conservation 
requirements and determination. The agenda item is being reviewed due to visibility concerns 
raised by Rutters. Ms. Willets read the request. Mr. Bieber, Rutters expressed the problems he 
faces with the sign being hidden from the tall trees. He stated that traffic coming from South 15 
would not be able to the Rutters sign. Motion: Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept 
Rutters forest conservation easement removal request; second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas – 
4; Nays – 1 (Boehman-Pollitt). The motion was approved to be sent to the Planning Commission. 
 
Agenda #7– Discussion and consideration of amending town code to allow for fences greater 
than four feet tall in front of yards. If the Board desires to amend the code, the staff shall be 
directed to prepare a text amendment for review and recommendation by the planning 
commission which will then be returned to the Board for final consideration and adoption. Ms. 
Willets read the Town code and told what was needed from the Board and explained that staff 
needed direction. The Board proposed to change the Ordinance to “for corner lots” (double 
frontage, greater than 4-6 feet) Robert Turnquist and his wife Valerie Turnquist, spoke about 
problems they have faced in the past with this. The Board of Appeals met on August 22,2022 
and granted an extension. Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to direct staff to prepare a 
proposed amendment to allow fences greater than four feet tall in corner lots to be sent to the 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 7 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

Planning Commission for recommendation; second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas – 5; Nays – 
0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Set Agenda Items for November 21st, 2022 Town Meeting 
 
Agenda Items: 

(1.) Hold public hearing then consideration of Ordinance 2022-12 which would increase 
water and sewer rates over a three- year period. (2.) For consideration, approval of 
Ordinance 2022-13 which would change Board of Commissioner meeting to 7:00pm. (3.) 
For consideration, approval of the three- year sewer relining bid. (4.) For discussion and 
consideration, an offer from Richard Lindsay to purchase three acres from the Town of 
Emmitsburg located near the WWTP. (5.) For consideration, approval of revertible forest 
conservation easement with Daughters of Charity. (A.) The Daughters of Charity is 
providing the Town a 9.2013-acre revertible forest conservation easement to the Town in 
order to plant trees for the 2023-2028 MS-4 permitting term. Parcel located on East side 
of US 15. (6.) For consideration, amending the hours of the Farmer’s Market. (7.) For 
consideration, approval of the Amendment to Loan and Financing agreement for the 
extension of credit made to the Vigilant Hose Company of Emmitsburg as the successor 
by merger to the Emmitsburg Volunteer Ambulance Co. Administrative Business: (1.) 
Free Holiday metered parking for consideration. (2.) Discussion related to using Farmer’s 
Market land for larger community garden plot. (3.) For consideration, Proclamation 
honoring Emmitsburg High School Volunteer. Consent Items: (1.) Reappoint Dianne 
Walbrecker to Board of Appeals with a term of December 15, 2022 – December 15, 
2025. (2.) Appoint Jack Pollitt to the Parks and Recreation Committee with a term of 
December 6, 2022 – December 2, 2024. (3.) Appoint Valeria Turnquist an alternate to the 
Planning Commission with a term of December 6, 2022 – December 6, 2027. (4.) 
Reappoint Mark Walker to the Citizen’s Advisory Committee with a term of November 
7, 2022 – November 7, 2024. 

 
Motion: Commissioner Ritz III motioned to accept the December 6, 2022 town meeting agenda 
as presented; second by Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 
 
III. Sign Approved Text Amendments and/or Resolutions  
 
IV.  Adjournment 
 With no further business, Commissioner Sweeney motioned to adjourn the November 7th, 

2022 town meeting at 10:48 p.m.; second by Commissioner Ritz III. Yeas – 5; Nays - 0. 
The motion was adopted. 

 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 Sabrina King, Town Clerk  
 Minutes Approved On:   
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 8 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

MINUTES 
TOWN MEETING 

NOVEMBER 21ST, 2022 
TOWN OFFICE – 300A SOUTH SETON AVENUE 

 
Present:  Elected Officials - Commissioners: Timothy O’Donnell, President; Joseph Ritz III, Vice 
President; Clifford Sweeney, Treasurer, Frank Davis; and Amy Boehman-Pollitt (Via Zoom). Staff 
Present - Cathy Willets, Town Manager; Sabrina King, Town Clerk; Cole Tabler, Accounting Supervisor; 
Reese Fryer, Recorder. 
 
II. Call to Order  
A quorum being present, Commissioner Timothy O’Donnell, President of the Board of Commissioners, 
called the November 21st, 2022 town meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
Upcoming meetings were announced. 
 
Announcement of a Closed Session 
President O’Donnell announced the need for a closed executive session following adjournment of the 
November 21, 2022 town meeting for the purpose of consulting with staff, consultants, or other 
individuals to discuss the proposed employment of the candidates for the Parking and Code Enforcement 
Office and Office Coordinator. The authority for meeting in closed session for this purpose is permitted 
by the General Provisions Article, Section 3-305 (b)(1), Annotated Code of Maryland which authorizes us 
to meet in closed session to discuss employment. The Board of Commissioner will not be meeting in 
another open session after the closed session has ended. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Commissioner Davis motioned to accept the October 3, 2022 town meeting minutes; second by 
Commissioner Sweeney. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was accepted.  
 
Commissioner Comments:  
• Commissioner Davis: No comment. 
• Commissioner Sweeney: Announced Christmas Festivities sponsored by the Lions Club at the VHC 

Recreational building on Creamery Road on December the 10th at 10am to 1pm. Santa will be there, 
plenty of activities for the children along with hot chocolate.  

• Commissioner Ritz III: He has received two positive comments in regards to the Christmas 
decorations in Town, and gave his thanks. 

• Commissioner O’Donnell: Also has been receiving great feed-back of the Christmas decoration in 
Town. He attended the Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory for the County and have put in the budget to 
fund a study for a paved path that would connect the Town of Emmitsburg to the University and the 
forth coming Regional Park. If there are funds left over from this, then they would look into 
connecting the paved path from Regional Park to Thurmont. 

• Commissioner Amy Boehman-Pollitt: No comment. 
 
 
Mayor’s Comments:  
Mayor Briggs was not in attendance with prior notice. 
 
 
Public Comments: 
No public comment. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 9 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
Administrative Business: (NONE) 
 
 
 
Consent Agenda: (NONE) 
 
II. Agenda Items 
Agenda #1 – For consideration, approval of Rutters pump station indemnification agreement. The agenda 
item is Pump Station Operations and Maintenance agreement. Ms. Willets presented the item briefly 
explaining the agreement. Rutters is asking permission to utilize their back-up pump while they wait for 
their main pump to arrive. Rutters received permission from MDE to proceed. Mr. Bieber briefly spoke of 
the delays of the pumps and electrical panels. Motion: Commissioner Ritz motioned to accept the 
approval of Rutter’s pump station indemnification agreement modified; second by Commissioner Davis. 
Yeas – 5; Nays –0. The motion was adopted. 
 
Agenda #2 – For consideration, approval of Master Service Agreement with Barton and Loguidice for 
consulting services for stormwater management and MS-4 for Town of Emmitsburg. The agenda item is 
being pursued for consulting and contractual services related to the mandatory stormwater management 
and mandatory MS-4 requirement. Ms. Willets gave a brief description of the agreement (find attached). 
Ms. Willets reviewed the termination clause in the agreement at Commissioner Ritz III’s request. Motion: 
Commissioner Sweeney motioned to accept the approval of Master Service Agreement; second by 
Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 4; Nays – 1; (Ritz III) The motion was adopted. 
 
The Board made a consensus for Commissioner Davis to actively follow other County’s assistance on 
MS-4 permits. 
 
Set Agenda Items for December 6, 2022 Town Meeting 
 
Agenda Items: 

(1.) Hold a public hearing then consideration of Ordinance 2022-12 which would increase water and 
sewer rates over a three-year period. (2.) For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2022-13 which 
would change Board of Commissioners meeting to 7:00pm. (3.) For consideration, approval of 
the three-year sewer relining bid. (4.) For discussion and consideration, an offer from Richard 
Lindsay to purchase three acres from the Town of Emmitsburg located near the WWTP. (5.) For 
consideration, approval of revertible forest conservation easement with Daughters of Charity. (a.) 
The Daughters of Charity is providing the Town a 9.02013-acre revertible forest conservation 
easement to the Town in order to plant trees for the 2023-2028 MS-4 permitting term. Parcel 
located on East side of US 15. (6.) For consideration, amending the hours of the Farmer’s Market. 
(7.) For consideration, approval of the Amendment to Loan and Financing agreement for the 
extension of credit made to the Vigilant Hose Company of Emmitsburg as the successor by 
merger to the Emmitsburg Volunteer Ambulance Co. Administrative Business: (1.) Free Holiday 
metered parking for consideration. (2.) Discussion related to using Farmer’s Market land for 
larger community garden plot. (3.) For consideration, Proclamation honoring Emmitsburg High 
School Volunteer. Consent Items: (1.) Reappoint Dianne Walbrecker to Citizen’s Advisory 
Committee with a term of December 15, 2022 – December 15, 2025. (2.) Appoint Jack Pollitt to 
the Parks and Recreation Committee with a term of December 6, 2022 – December 2, 2024. (3.) 
Appoint Valeria Turnquist an alternate to the Planning Commission with a term of December 6, 
2022 – December 6, 2027. (4.) Reappoint Mark Walker to the Citizen’s Advisory Committee 
with a term of November 7, 2022 – November 7, 2024. Motion: Commissioner Davis motioned to 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 10 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

accept the December 6, 2022 town meeting agenda as presented; second by Commissioner Ritz 
III. Yeas – 5; Nays – 0. The motion was adopted. 

 
III.Sign Approved Text Amendments and/or Resolutions  

 
Announcement of a Closed Session 
President O’Donnell announced the need for a closed executive session following adjournment of the 
November 21, 2022 town meeting for the purpose of consulting with staff, consultants, or other 
individuals to discuss the proposed employment of the candidates for the Parking and Code Enforcement 
Office and Office Coordinator. The authority for meeting in closed session for this purpose is permitted 
by the General Provisions Article, Section 3-305 (b)(1), Annotated Code of Maryland which authorizes us 
to meet in closed session to discuss employment. The Board of Commissioner will not be meeting in 
another open session after the closed session has ended. 
 
 
IV.  Adjournment 
 With no further business, Commissioner Sweeney motioned to adjourn the November 21, 2022 

town meeting at 8:12 p.m.; second by Commissioner Davis. Yeas – 5; Nays - 0. The motion was 
adopted. 

 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 Sabrina King, Town Clerk  
 Minutes Approved On:   
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 11 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

B. POLICE REPORT 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 12 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

C. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Town Manager’s Report 
October 2022 

Prepared by Cathy Willets  
 

Streets: 
• Staff replaced and repaired some street signs around town.  
• Staff conducted monthly street sweeping. 
• Staff repaired street lights. 
• Staff conducted monthly storm drain inlet cleaning. 
• Staff assisted contractor pour new section of sidewalk in front of 100 & 207 W. Main St. 
• Staff also assisted contractor with new section of sidewalk in front of 304 E. Main St. 
• Contractor repainted parking spaces on Welty Ave. 
• Staff numbered all new fire hydrants and streetlights on Irishtown Rd. 
• Staff put up additional speed limit signs on the new section of Irishtown Rd. 
• Staff cleaned and repainted parking spaces on Irishtown Rd. from North Seton to Emmit 

Ct. 
• Staff dug up and replanted leaning bollards at the end of West Lincoln Ave. 

 
 Parks: 

• Staff conducted daily park checks – trash cans, cameras, dog waste stations, restrooms. 
• Staff conducted monthly park maintenance – playground equipment, roads, fences, 

pavilions, etc.  
• Staff mowed, trimmed and weed killed in parks. 
• Staff replaced a section of the board fence in E. Eugene Myers Park. 
• Staff weed ate, trimmed trees and weed killed around stormwater pond in E. Eugene 

Myers Park. 
• Staff trimmed and weed killed shrubs and trees on the east side of ballfield #3 parking 

lot. 
Water: 

• Rainbow Lake is 1.8’ below the spillway level (14.8 feet).  Spillway is 16.6 feet. 
• The roughing filters are being backwashed four times a day.  The DE filters are getting one 

week runs. 
• Well levels (optimum level was determined to be May 2011).  

 
 May 2011  October Change 

o Well #1:   35’  48’   -13’           
o Well #2:   8’  13’   -5’              
o Well #3:   12’  30’  -18’           
o Well #4:   108’  125’  -17’        
o Well #5:   10’  27’  -17   



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 13 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
• Water production and consumption.  We produced an average of 242,515 GPD.  We 

consumed an average of 256,824 GPD (finish water + MSM).  The amount of Backwash 
Water in the month of September is ... (15.75%).  
 

• 53.26% of this water came from wells. 
•   4.96% of this water came from Mt. St. Mary's. 
• 41.78% of this water came from Rainbow Lake.  

 
We purchased 442,600 gallons of water from MSM this month.  
 
Wastewater: 

 We treated an average of 373,206 gpd (consumed 256,824 GPD) which means that   
31.18% of the wastewater treated this month was "wild water".   

 We had no spills of untreated sewage in the month of October. 
 We did exceed the plant’s design capacity three times in the month of October. 

o 10/02  976,000 gpd 10/04  892,000 gpd 10/13  793,000 gpd 
 We received about 3.7” of precipitation this month (the average is 3.4”).   We have a 

precipitation SURPLUS of 4.27” over the last six months.  The average precipitation 
for the period from May 1 through October 31 is 22.93“.  We have received 27.2“ for 
that period.   

 
Trash:  Trash pickup will remain Mondays in the month of December except for the Christmas 
Holiday.  Trash will be picked upon Tuesday, December 27th. 
  
Meetings Attended: 

• 10/3 Attended Town Meeting 
• 10/3 Met with Mayor 
• 10/5 Met with staff and consultant re: Emmit Gardens WTP previous design 
• 10/5 Conference call with Town Attorney 
• 10/10 Attended MML Fall Conference 
• 10/11 Attended MML Fall Conference 
• 10/13 Met with Mayor 
• 10/14 Met with Mayor 
• 10/17 Conference call with Town Attorney 
• 10/18 Attended department head meeting. 
• 10/18 Conference call with Mayor and Chris Jakubiak. 
• 10/19  Met with Dir. Of Public Works to go over applications for parking/code 

enforcement officer  
• 10/21 Met with Leslie and Town Planner to go over current and future projects. 
• 10/21 Met with consultant and Town Planner to go over current and future stormwater 

and MS-4 projects. 
• 10/24 Conference call with George Brenton DOC re: coming projects 
• 10/24 Attended Frailey Farm annexation workshop 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 14 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

• 10/25 Attended Planning Commissioners conference in Frederick 
• 10/25 Attended Planning Commission meeting 
• 10/26 Attended Planning Commissioners conference in Frederick 
• 10/27 Met with Mayor 
• 10/31 Attended zoom call with Mayor, Commissioner Amy Boehman-Pollitt, and FCPS 

staff re: growth in Emmitsburg. 
 
Noteworthy: 

• Staff pumps holding tank every 10 days at 8533 Hampton Valley Rd. 
• Staff worked the yard waste dumpster twice in September. 
• Staff conducted monthly equipment and fire extinguisher maintenance. 
• Staff did some water meter upgrades. 
• Staff completed some use and occupancy permit inspections.  
• Staff conducted quarterly water meter readings. 
• Staff conduct hydrant flushing throughout Town with no discolored water complaints. 
• Staff had to go up to four backwashes at the WTP due to the quality of the lake water. 
• Staff replaced Grit system UPS backup battery at WWTP. 
• Staff pressure tested sewer lines at Rutters.  Two lines failed at first, but adjustments 

were made.  Both lines passed. 
• Staff replaced a broken heater in Headworks building at WWTP. 
• Staffed hauled millings to Well 3 Road, Post 2 Entrance and Boat Ramp Road above 

Rainbow Lake to smooth out roads. 
• Staff installed new water meter registers at 51 DePaul St. Village Apartments. 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 15 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

            As of December 1, 2022 
Grants Administrator Report 

Prepared By: Madeline Shaw, Grants Administrator 
 
ACTIVE GRANTS (11 TOTAL) 
#22-1, USDA New Public Works Equipment for $168,900 (match of $128,500) 

• For purchase of a 4x4 work truck, backhoe loader, multi-user tractor, WWTP SCADA. 
• Status - Backhoe and multi-use tractor delivered. SCADA completed. Waiting on work 

truck to be delivered; shipped Nov. 22nd. Once all invoices are received the final grant 
report will be submitted.  

#22-5, GOCCP Edward J. Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (BJAG) for $98,544 
(no match) 

• For purchase/installation of 3 license plate readers & 3 surveillance cameras. 
• Status -  ALPRs installed. 2 of 3 surveillance cameras installed. Deputies trained on 

system Nov. 10. Waiting on agreement with Jubilee property owner before last 
surveillance camera installed.  

#22-6, POS New Bathroom/Concession Stand for $147,980 ($89,000 match) 
#22-7, LPPI New Bathroom/Concession Stand for $40,000 (no match) 

• For construction of a new bathroom/concession stand combo building in Community 
Park. 

• Status – Engineer currently working on SWM plan and topographic work, due by Dec. 
1st.  

USDA Creamery Road Pump Station Replacement $863,000 grant, $1,987,000 loan 
• For replacement of Creamery Road Pump Station will new station. 
• Status – waiting on USDA to approve final design, currently submitting monthly reports 

to USDA. 
#23-1, TRIPP Historic Walking Tour and Visit Emmitsburg Website for $9,750 ($9,750 
match) 

• For creation of a tri-fold brochure with walking tour map and creation of 
VisitEmmitsburg website that would include things to do in area and walking tour. 

• Status – VisitEmmitsburg.com website went live Nov. 21. Brochure to be printed and 
delivered mid-December before being distributed to tourism destinations, then project 
will be done. 

#23-2, TRIPP Emmitsburg Advertising for $2,963 ($1,481 match) 
• For advertising the Town as a destination in Celebrate Gettysburg and Montgomery 

Magazine. 
• Status – waiting to run ads in spring/summer 2023. 

#23-4, CP&P Silo Hill Playground Improvements for $146,263 (no match) 
• To replace old swing set and playground tower and install half basketball court. 
• Status – State fully approved grant. Purchase order sent to contractor for work 08/25. 

Installation to occur in January/February 2023 at latest.  
#23-8, MEA Streetlight & Outdoor Lighting Efficiency Pilot for $27,500 (15% of total 
project cost match) 
#23-10, USDA Downtown Streetlight Replacement for $75,000 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 16 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

#23-11, USDA Downtown Streetlight Replacement for $50,000 
• Replace 102 streetlights along Main Street / Seton Avenue with new LED dimmable 

cutoff lights. 
• Status – waiting on DHCD Operating Assistance grant award in January and town budget 

transfer to fund entire project est. at $234,090.  
 

NEWLY AWARDED GRANTS 
 
PENDING GRANTS (WAITING FOR ANNOUNCEMENT) (14 TOTAL) 
#23-5, POS Rainbow Lake Parking Lot for $70,000 ($37,500 match) 

• For SWM plan and to pave a 10 to 12 space parking lot at Rainbow Lake. 
#23-6, POS Community Park Cornhole for $6,000 ($2,00 match) 

• For installing two pairs of permanent concrete cornhole boards in Community Park. 
#23-7, POS Outdoor Storybook Trail for $8,250 ($2,750 match) 

• For installation of 30 single pedestal exhibits that would display exchangeable storybook 
pages. 

DHCD Operating Assistance Grant – Main Street Improvement Grant for $10,000  
• Replace 102 streetlights along Main Street / Seton Avenue with new LED dimmable 

cutoff lights. 
MWQFA Drinking Water Revolving Loan and/or Water Supply Grant for $2,255,552 
submitted 01/31/22 

1. North Seton Avenue waterline replacement $1,145,552 
2. DePaul Street waterline replacement $1,110,000 

DNR Local Parks and Playgrounds Infrastructure Grant FY2023 – 4 Totaling $100,000 
submitted 07/06/22 

1. Rainbow Lake Parking Lot to cover remainder of funds needed for project $44,500 
2. Community Park Pavilion Improvements to rehab pavilion and replace tables $30,500 
3. Memorial Park Pavilion Improvements to rehab pavilions and replace tables $22,000 
4. Baseball Bat/Helmet Racks to purchase racks for remaining 3 ballfields $3,000 

DNR Community Parks and Playgrounds FY2024 – 2 Totaling $120,686 submitted 
08/24/22 

1. Install half basketball court in Memorial Park $15,000 
2. Install playground addition via Timber Stacks play equipment in Memorial Park 

$105,686 
DHCD Business District and Neighborhood Safety Grant for $85,000 submitted 10/21/22 

• Purchase two portable radar speed trailers and two surveillance cameras for town square. 
KMB Citizen Stewardship Grant for $5,000 submitted 11/14/2022 

• Purchase 4 pet waste stations and 3 recycling containers to be installed at various areas in 
Town. 

 
UPCOMING GRANTS (TO APPLY FOR) 

1. State Aid for Police Protection (SAPP) FY2024, due 12/14/2022 
2. MEA Streetlight & Outdoor Lighting Efficiency Pilot FY2023, due 01/13/2023 

o Fund a portion of streetlight replacement in developments 
3. Chesapeake Bay Trust Green Streets (G3) grant, due around March 2023 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 17 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

o Funds to complete improvement plan & partial construction for N. Seton Green 
Street & waterline replacement. 

4. TRIPP Tourism Grant, due around March 2023 
o Funds to obtain wayfinding signage 

5. Community Development Block Grant, due around June 2023 
o Fund remaining DePaul Street waterline replacement as needed 

6. Parking meter money grant – looking for funding 
7. And other grants as funding is found. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 18 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

D. TOWN PLANNER’S REPORT 
 
 
 
 
Town Planner Report 
 
 
To: Board of Town Commissioners 
From: Christopher Jakubiak 
Date: November 29, 2022 
Re: Update on Open Projects 
 
 

1. The Federal Stone company is proposing changes to its previously approved preliminary 
site plan at Creamery Court to reflect a proposed new building format and footprint and 
related changes to the site. The Applicant anticipates having revised plans ready in time 
for the December 19th Planning Commission Meeting. 
 

2. The Daughters of Charity Ministries, Seton Village Property is seeking to formally re-
plat the property creating two lots for purposes related to ownership. This is a technical 
plat change and I have advised the surveyor on the Town’s plat requirements and 
procedures. 
 

3. Rutters fuel station and convenience store is proposing an amendment to its approved site 
plan to remove a forest conservation easement. This would allow the removal of trees 
that are now protected by the easement.  

 
4. I will be drafting a zoning text amendment for the Planning Commission’s future review 

to address the placement of fences along the street sides of corner lots. The Planning 
Commission will be asked to formulate and transit a recommendation to the Board of 
Town Commissioners. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 19 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

E. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 20 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

F. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

• Monday, November 7th, 7:30 PM, regularly scheduled Town meeting. 
• Monday, November 8th, 1-2:30 PM, Sustainable Maryland Executive Committee meeting 

postponed to January 2023. 
• Monday, November 10th, 10 - 11:30 PM, St Johns College, Annapolis-Santa Fe, Classics 

Seminar - zoom. 
• Friday, November 11th, 11:00 AM, VETERANS DAY, American Legion-VFW Honor 

Guard commemorations at St Joseph’s Church and American Legion Post (programs 
scheduled visits to Doughboy and five other cemeteries cancelled due to inclement 
weather). 

• Sunday, November 13th 2 – 4:00 PM, attended “Ukrainian Icons”: Lecture with Kateryna 
Dovgan at Knott Auditorium Mount Saint Mary’s University. 

• Monday, November 14th, 2:30 PM, with Maddy Shaw, visit from Maryland Main Street 
staff for a tour of the town. 

• Tuesday, November 15th, 11:00 AM, with Maddy Shaw meet with Town wayside exhibit 
developers. 

• Wednesday, November 16th, 10:00 AM, Mayor presentation to Mother Seton School 4th 
grade classes. 

• Wednesday 16th, 10:00 AM, with Conrad Weaver met with Michael Zhorvin, who hand 
carry town Sister City proclamation with Lutsk, Ukraine to Mayor Ihor Poiishchuk (will 
request a Lutsk City flag). 

• Monday 28th, 11:30 AM, planner interview, with TM Willets, HR - Amanda Haddaway, 
and planning consultant Chris Jacubiak. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 21 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 22 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
H. ADMINSTRATIVE BUSINESS 

 
1. Mayor Briggs & Town Staff Recommendation: For the Holiday Season, free metered 

parking from Friday, December 9, 2022 to Tuesday, January 3, 2023. 
 

2. Discussion related to using Farmer’s Market land for larger community garden plot. 
 

3. For consideration, Proclamation honoring Emmitsburg High School Volunteer. 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 23 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
Let It Hereby Be Known 

on the occasion of this 
recognition of services  

this 6th day of December 2022 the 

Town of Emmitsburg 
hereby extends sincere gratitude 

and heartfelt appreciation to 

Joyce Bruchey 
for the services provided to the Emmitsburg High 

School as a teacher, librarian and historian 
for 39 years.  It is hoped that Ms. Bruchey will 
continue to be a presence and resource to the 

Emmitsburg community for many years to come. 
 
 
 

 

Donald N. Briggs, Mayor 
December 6, 2022  Timothy O’Donnell, President 

Board of Commissioners 
December 6, 2022 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 24 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
I. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
CONSENT AGENDA #1: Reappoint Diane Walbrecker to Board of Appeals    
                                with a term of December 15, 2022 – December 15, 2025. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA #2: Appoint Jack Pollitt to the Parks and Recreation Committee with a 
         term of December 6, 2022 – December 2, 2024. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA #3: Appoint Valerie Turnquist an alternate to the Planning   
         Commission with a term of December 6, 2022 – December 6,  
         2027. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA #4: Reappoint Mark Walker to the Citizen’s Advisory Committee  
                     with a term of November 7, 2022 – November 7, 2024.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 25 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

J. TRESUER REPORT  
 

 
 
 
 

K. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 26 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

L. AGENDA ITEMS 
 

AGENDA ITEM #1: Hold public hearing then consideration of Ordinance 2022-12  
            which would increase water and sewer rates over a three-year  
            period. 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 27 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 28 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 29 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 30 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 31 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 32 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 33 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 34 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 35 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 36 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 37 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 38 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 39 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 40 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 41 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 42 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 43 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 44 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 45 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 46 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 47 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 48 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 49 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 50 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 51 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing 
Ordinance has been posted as 

required by Chapter 2.04 of the 
Emmitsburg Municipal Code. 

 
 

Sabrina King, Town Clerk 
Date: 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 52 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

AGENDA ITEM #2: For consideration, approval of Ordinance 2022-13 which would change 
                                   Board of Commissioners meeting to 7:00pm. 
 
  
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 53 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 54 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 55 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

AGENDA ITEM #3: For consideration, approval of the three-year sewer relining bid. 
 
                                  Presentation at the Town Meeting by Staff. 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 56 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

TIMELINE – THREE YEAR SEWER RE-LINING BID:  
RFP published by Town  Wed. September 7, 2022 
DEADLINE, bids due Fri. October 14, 2022 
Bids opened Tue. November 15, 2022 at 9:00 am. – Willets, King, 

Brantner & Click 
 
 
RFP ADVERTISEMENT: 

• Public Notice Under RFP Tab on Town’s Website:   09/07/2022 – 10/14/2022 
• Notice on MML Classifieds:     09/07/2022 – 10/14/2022 
• RFP Published on eMaryland Marketplace:   09/07/2022 
• Public Notice on Town Facebook Page   09/07/2022 
• Email sent to potential contractors:    09/08/2022 

 
PROJECT FUNDING: Dept. 50 Sewer Fund – budgeted asset item 
 
NOTES: 
RFP – Looking for a three year bid on the following items: 

• 6’ CIPP Liner 
• 8’ CIPP Liner 
• 10’ CIPP Liner 
• 12’ CIPP Liner 
• 15’ CIPP Liner 
• Lateral Connections 
• Reinstate Sanitary Lateral Connections 
• Mobilization 
• Traffic Control 

 
BIDS RECEIVED (ALPHABETICAL ORDER): 
Contractor: Amount:*** Notes: 
SAK $29,295.00 Warranty not included in bid 
Pleasants Construction $5,268.89 One Year Warranty 
Humphrey & Son Inc. $7,935.00 One Year Warranty 
Guyer Brothers $5.992.00 Ten Year Warranty 
AM-Liner $6,888.60 Three Year Warranty 
Inliner Solutions $15,960.00 One Year Warranty 
Mr. Rehab $9,562.00 One Year Warranty 
Mobile Dredging $24,518.30 One Year Warranty 
Intituform Technologies $26,825.00 Insufficient Warranty Statement 

 
 
**Total price includes pricing for each of the items requested above.  Staff picked the top four.  
Here is the breakdown: 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 57 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
PIPE SIZE. ECT MR REHAB 

HUMPHREY 
& SON 

GUYER 
BROTHERS 

AM-
LINER 

PRICE 
PER 

FOOT 

6'' $75.00 $45.00 $51.00 $44.00 

8'' $48.00 $45.00 $56.00 $39.40 

10'' $54.00 $55.00 $66.00 $41.60 

12'' $65.00 $75.00 $76.00 $49.00 

15'' $95.00 $90.00 $93.00 $85.00 

LATERAL 
CONNECTIONS $225.00 $125.00 $200.00 $230.00 

MOBILIZATION $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,900.00 $4,400.00 

TRAFFIC 
CONTROL $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,550.00 $2,000.00 

WARRANTY 1 YEAR 1 YEAR 10 YEARS 3 YEARS 

LOCATION MECHANICSBURG, 
PA (43MILES) 

LAUREL, MD 
(71MILES) 

NEW 
ENTERPRISE, 
PA (85MILES) 

BERRYVILLE, 
VA (64MILES) 

TECHNOLOGY CIPP CIPP THERMOFORM CIPP 

YEARS EXPERIENCE 22 YEARS 37 YEARS 23 YEARS 28 YEARS 

     
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
OUR RECOMENDATION BASED ON THE RFP ARE TO CHOOSE GUYER BROTHERS. 
WE FEEL THEY WOULD BE BEST DUE TO THEIR WARRANTY AND THE MATERIAL 
USED 
THEY USE A DIFFERENT TECHNOLOGY THAT REQUIRES NO CHEMICALS AND ONLY 
STEAM AND COLD AIR TO FORM THE LINER TO EXISTING PIPE 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 58 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

AGENDA ITEM #4: For discussion and consideration, an offer from Richard Lindsay to  
                                   purchase three acres from the Town of Emmitsburg located near the            
                                   WWTP. 
        
                                   Presentation at the Town Meeting by Staff and Applicant. 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 59 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 60 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 61 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

                                  

                             



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 62 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 63 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

       



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 64 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

            



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 65 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

         



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 66 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 

                  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 67 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 5: For consideration, approval of revertible forest conservation easement 
                                    with Daughters of Charity.  

a. The Daughters of Charity is providing the Town a 
9.2013- acre revertible forest conservation easement to 
the Town in order to plant trees for the 2023-2028 MS-
4 permitting term. Parcel located on East side of US 15. 

    
   Presentation at the Town Meeting by Staff. 
 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 68 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 69 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 70 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 71 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 72 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 73 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 74 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 75 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 

                                                         



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 76 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
                                                               



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 77 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 

 
 
 

                                                        



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 78 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 

                                                             
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 79 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 

 
                                                             



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 80 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 

                                                        



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 81 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
                                                                  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 82 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
                                                            



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 83 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
                                                             
 



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 84 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                              



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 85 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 86 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

AGENDA ITEMS # 6: For consideration, amending the hours of the Farmer’s Market. 
 
                                      Presentation at the Town Meeting by Commissioner Boehman-Pollitt. 
  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 87 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

AGENDA ITEMS # 7: For consideration, approval of the Amendment to Loan and Financing 
                                      agreement for the extension of credit made to the Vigilant Hose 
                                      Company of Emmitsburg as the successor by merger to the Emmitsburg 
                                      Ambulance Co. 
  
                                                 WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT 

  



Town Meeting Agenda  Page 88 of 88 
December 6th, 2022 
 
 

For more information, go to www.emmitsburgmd.gov 
 

 
M. SET AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING: JANUARY 9TH, 2022 
 
1. 
 
2. 
 
3. 
 
4. 
 
5. 
 
Administrative Business: 
 
A. 
 
B. 
 
C. 

 


